STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

**2**5

**2**6

27

28

Back in 2008 Unico (Inhabitat Dexter, LLC "Inhabitat Dexter and Kai and Kaleva Liikane (hereinafter called KKL) signed a Soil Nail Agreement (EX.X). Unico owned the property at 1701 Dexter Ave. N. in Seattle, Wa. KKL own the property at 1608 Aurora Ave. N. Seattle, Wa. (lots 3 and 5). Juhan Liikane ownes the lot #4, between lots 3 and 5. Juhan Liikane never signed any agreement with Unico or Daly. Pursuant to agreement X Unico was going to build a building on their property mentioned above. Unico never did, because they sold their property to Daly, et al, about on October 30,2012. Inagreement X KKL would temporarily allow Unico to place Soil Nails (specified in agreement X) on KKLs' property. Also, in that same agreement Unico had the right to assign their agreement X to Daly, which they did. Unico had specific plans and appropriate permits from Respondent City of Seattle, to place the Soil Nails on all of the adjacent properties, including City Alley. Juhan Liikane's property was excluded, because he had refused to make a agreement with Unico. § 7 in EX.X allowed Unico to assign this agreement, which they did, to Daly et al. This meant that the entire agreement in its form

Appellants' Brief

and details as signed and as the drawings showed was assigned, without any modifications, amendments or terminations could have been made withoutKKLs' written approval and signatures, §8, EX.X. The fact is that all the requirements in §8 (EX.X) were NOT MET, constituting a breach of contract by Daly et al Further breach of contract by Daly is committed by not abiding by §'s 1,2,3, and 5, of EX.X. Daly has never and never will finish the construction according to the plans and specifications agreed and signed by KKL. (§1, EX.X). §1 of EX.X, has been breached by Daly by not and he never will and give the as built drawings according to the plans and conditions made by Unico, which were assigned over to Daly. But Daly never used these assigned over plans at all, because he abandoned them in their entirety and introduced brand new plans, specs and permits, alltogether different from the Unico ones, that KKL had signed and agreed upon. Breach of contract by Daly et al by not completing the building as was assigned and City of Seattle has not and can never issue a certificate of occupancy, because the building will never be finished according to the plans and specifications as assigned to Daly.  $(\S2, EX.X)$ 

The Respondents breached the assigned agreement by not

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

23 24

25

26

27

offering and or paying the \$2,000.00 to KKL as §5 of EX.X requires. Due to Daly abandoning and of all the breachments of the Unico agreement by all of the Respondents of the assigned Unico agreement the entire original agreement became NULL AND VOID and a new contract between the Respondents and the Appellants had to be made, which the Respondents refused to do, even thou the Appellants offered to negotiate a new agreement. According to §12 of EX.X the Appellants had no choice, but to file an action against the Respondents, because of all the breachments committed by the Respondents. Also, the Respondents committed crimminal trespass by removeing some of the KKLs' property, by placing steel cables and concrete into KKLs' property and entered the same property without approval and or permission of KKL (§s 3 and 5 of EX.X ) The lower Court failed to recognize all the above described facts and granted the Respondents their cross-motion and dismissed the action started by the Appellants. The Judge wrongly ordered, adjudged and decreed that: 1) Defendants Daly Partners, LLC and Jim Daly's cross-motion for Summary Judge and State ment GRANTED. 2) The Court finds that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and orders that Plaintiffs' claims are hereby dismissed with prejudice. (EX. Y)

Appellants' Brief

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

**2**5

**2**6

27

Division 1, of State of Washington.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

3

5

1) The trial Court erred in dismissing with prejuduce the Appellants' motion for summary judgment, on the ground that there are no genuine issues of material fact and at the same time the Court made a mistake by granting the Respondents' their cross-motion for summary judgment.

a) Issue - can the cross-motion for a summary judgment be granted by the Judge, if in fact there are many genuine issues of material facts for a jury to decide?

b) Issue - can the Judge make his own rule, while the Rule 56(civil rules) is extremely clear that there must not be any genuine issues of material facts for a jury to decide.
(Rule 56(c) civil rule for Superior Court for State of Washington.

2) Trial Court erred by not upholding the Appellants' constitutional right to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures. (Amendment 4and 14 of U.S.Constitution)

-7-

Appellants' Brief

2 3 a) Issue - can the Court take away the Appellants' consti-4 tutional right to be secure in their effects, and property 5 without the Appellants' written approval and consent? 6 b) Issue - does the Court have the right to alter and 7 change the U.S. Constitution and do the same to the assign-8 ed easement agreement? (Unico agreement) 9 3) Trial Court erred by not applying the 7th Amendment 10 of U.S.Constitution for the Appellants' right for a jury 11 trial, while there are many genuine issues of material facts 12 for jury to decide. (Amendment 7 of U.S. Constitution) 13 a) issue - the Judge does not have the power to over-14 rule the U.S. Constitution, when there are genuine issues 15 of material facts for a jury to decide. 16 4) Trial Court erred by not upholding the Appellants' 17 right as quaranteed by the 14th Amendment of U.S.Consti-18 tution. 19 a) Issue - trial Court erred by not abiding by the 14th 20 Amendment of U.S.Constitutionand withit deprived the 21 Appellants of their own property illegally and unlawfully 22 without due process of law. 23 b) issue - trial Court erred by depriving the Appell-24 ants of equal protection of law as quaranteed by the 14th 25 26 27 28 Appellants' Brief

(a) Issue- The Judge does not have the power to overrule the U.S.Constitution when there are many genuine issues of material facts for a jury to decide. However, he breached his contract with the people by not abiding with his each of office in upholding the U.S. Constitution, Amendment 7. Therfore, his order should be overturned and or sent to a jury trial.

4) TRIAL COURT ERRED BY NOT UPHOLDING THE APPELLANTS' CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT AS QUARANTEED BY THE 14TH AMEND-MENT OF U.S.CONSTITUTION.

a) Insead granting the motion for summary judgment by Appellants, the Judge dismissed it and granted the Respondents' cross-motion. It is obvious that he forgat or totally ignored his oath of office. The Judge is supposed to uphold the U.S.Constitution and make his decisions impartially and fairly. In this case the opposite is true. As the Constitutional quarantee, the Appellants have the right for equal protection of the laws (U.S.Constitution, Amendment 14)

In this instance the Judge failed to protect the Appellants KKL. Again, on this basis alone the lower Court's order should be overturned and justice restored.

Appellants' Brief

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Amendment of U.S.Constitution.

5) Trial Court erred by breach of contract of the Judge by not abiding by his oath of office to uphold the Costitution of United States.

a) Issue - Did in fact the trial Judge breach his oath of office by not upholding the U.S.Constitution of United States and and in so doing, confiscated part of the Appellants' property and gave it to a private party, namely: Jim Daly, et al who in turn committed criminal trespass.

#### ARGUMENT

5

1) THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DISMISSING WITH PREJUDICE THE APPELLANTS' MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, ON THE GROUND THAT THERE ARE NO GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS, AT THE SAME TIME GRANTED THE CROSS\_MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE RESPONDENTS.

1.1) There are many genuine issues of material facts for
a jury to decide. For instance: (a) After the Respondents
received and obtained by assignment the original Unico
easement agreement with KKL back in 2008. (b) Did the
Respondents breach that agreement on number of accounts?
(c) Did the Respondents commit criminal trespass by not
making the required \$2,000.00 payment to KKL?

Appellants' Brief

-10-

(d) Did the Respondents make totally new and different plans for the building by not useing the original Unico plans that KKL had signed and agreed with?

(e) Did Respondent City of Seattle require new permits other than Unico already had obtained and assigned over to Jim Daly, et al and why?

(f) Did Unico complete their project prior assignment to Jim Daly, et al and if not , why not?

(g) Did Respondent City of Seattle issue a certificate of occupancy as required by § 2 of Unico contract? If not, why not?
(h) Did Appellants get the \$2,000.00 in cash as required by the Unico agreement §5?

(i) Did Respondents Daly, et al modify, amend or terminate Unico agreement without the written approval from KKl as require by §8 of the Unico contract? (EX.X)

These are only few examples of genuine issues of mate rial factsfor a jury to decide and NOT FOR A SINGLE JUDGE. Obviously this Judge made a grave error by eliminating Appellants' motion for summary judgment and granting the

Respondents' cross-motion.

Also, it is valueable to mention that with all these breaches of the assigned agreement, the Respondents declared the

#### Appellants' Brief

3

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

original Unico agreement NULL AND VOID, that is why they had to apply and obtain all new permits from the City. 2) TRIAL COURT ERRED BY NOT UPHOLDING THE APPELLANTS<sup>4</sup> CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO BE SECURE IN THEIR PERSONS, HOUSES, PAPERS ,AND EFFECTS, AGAINST UNREASONABLE SEARCHES AND SEI-ZURES. (4th and 14th Amendments to U.s.Constitution.

(a) In this case the Court gave a wrongful order for the Respondents to illegally and unlawfully conduct a criminal trespass upon Appellants' property without the written permission and approval of the Appellants KKL, as the assigned Unico contract §5 requires with very clear meaning about entering the Appellants' property. Therefore, the Appellants constitutional right had been taken from them and given to the Respondents benefit without proper and fair compensation as required.

b) The Court has no right to alter, amend or terminate the contract between two parties, without the proper, written permission of the Appellants KKL, spelled out in Unico assigned agreement §8, EX. X.

3) TRIAL COURT ERRED BY NOT APPLYING THE 7TH AMEND-MENT OF U.S.CONSTITUTION FOR APPELLANTS' RIGHT FOR A JURY TRIAL, WHILE THERE ARE MANY QUESTIONS OF GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS FOR A JURY TO DECIDE. (AMENDment 7, U.S.CONSTITUTION).

Appellants' Brief

State State State

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

-12-

5) TRIAL COURT ERRED BY BREACH OF CONTRACT OF THE JUDGE BY NOT ABIDING BY HIS OATH OF OFFICE TO UPHOLD THE CONTI-TUTION OF U.S.

a) Unico agreement (EX.X) was assigned over to Jim Daly, et al and in this contract §s 1,2,3,5, and 8, it is quite clear that the Respondents breached these conditions. AS a matter of fact, the Respondents chose to throw that agreement away and make a entirely new contract with all the adjacent property owners, except with the Appellants KKL and Juhan Liikane. (Lot #4) The Respondents paid a great deal of money to all of them, except not a dime to KKL. It was all a matter of money. The Appellants KKL attempted to negotiate a new contract with the Respondents, but unfortunately they refused to cooperate.

Due to all the actual breaches of the Unico agreement, the lower Court's order should be overturned and all the Constitutional rights restored to the Appellants KKL. Also, the appropriate sanctions against the Respondents are in order.

#### CONCLUSION

ppellants' Brief

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

**2**5

26

27

28

The Respondents' cross-motion to the Appellants' motion for summary judgment should be overturned and the Appellants' motion for summary judgment granted. The assigned agreement of Unico was never used by the Respondents and they made a new one with all of the parties involved, except Appellants KKL. The Respondents did in fact breach the assigned Unico contract and with this action declared that agreement NULL AND VOID. The Respondents made a new contract with all, except Appellants KKL. The Respondents made new plans and were required by City to apply and obtain new permits. Prior issueing the new permits the Appellants NOTIFIED AND WARNED the City not to issue new permits until the Respondents and Appellants produce a new contract between them. The City ignored all the notices and warnings and issued a new permits anyway, allowing the Respondents to place Soil Nails illegally and unlawfully under KKL's property and with this action they committed criminal trespass, without Appellants' written approval and permission, as required by assigned Unico original agreement. The Court was not impartial when the Judge made a order by taking away the Constitutional rights of the Appellants as guaranteed by the 4th and 14th Amendments. Also, the Judge had given an oath of office to uphold the U.S.Constitution and make all of his decisions impartially and fairly and give the Appellants' their quaranteed protection of the laws.

Appellants' Brief

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

**2**5

26

27

28

-14-

Obviously, the Court could not make a correct decision, because in Court the Respondents and or their attorneys committed perjury by telling the Judge falsehoods and mis representations in respect to Unico assigned agreement to Daly, et al. Specific perjury was committed by the Respondents and their dishonest attorneys, when they lied about the modifications and changes to the original, assigned contract by not following the agreement and when they modified the drawings and specifications over 20% what had been agreed upon by KKL and Unico (§s 1 and 8 EX.X) Of course this is a significant modification and change to the original Unico agreement. Besides, the Respondents made this agreement (assigned) NULL AND VOID, by making their own, brand new and totally different plans which the Respondent City of Seattle required Daly et al to apply and obtain brand new permits. City ignored all of the notices and warnings by the Appellants not to issue new permits, until KKL and Daly had a new agreement. Furthermore, the Respondents breached the assigned Unico contract by not paying the required \$2,00.00 in cash as called for in §5 of that agreement. Also, the Respondents breached the same agreements §s 1,2 and 3, by not pro-

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Brief

viding as-built drawings, showing the locations, elevations, and dimensions of the Soil Nails. The fact remains that the modifications were made to the original drawings by changing the locations, angels and dimensions to six Soil Nails, originally NOT AGREED upon. These facts were never revealed in Court and unfortunately the misinformed Judge made a wrong decision. The assigned agreement can never be in force as §2 (EX.X) dictates, because it never has been and never will be constructed to the original plans and specifications, as was agreed by KKL (EX.X) The Respondents did in fact disturbe the Appellants' property prior of paying the required \$2,000.00 (EX. X) The Respondents damaged the Appellants' property with the heavy machinery - they entered illegally and unlawfully the Appellants' parking lot off the alley and caused the damsge with this criminal trespass. Because of this criminal trespass by the Respondents the Appellants had to suffer the damages of not receiving the rent for the parking spaces. All of the final damages done to the Appellants will be determined at the trial. The Appellants have already produced enough prima facie evidence in an effort to achieve justice in this Court of Appeals,

Appellants' Brief

٨٠٠٠

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

-16-

For all the reasons herein stated it is respectfully submitted that the wrong decision of the trial Court be reversed and a correct decision be entered accordinglt.