COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION I

KALEVA AND MART LIIKANE,

Appellants,

v.

CITY OF SEATTLE, DEPARTMENT OF CONSTRUCTION AND LAND USE, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION; DALY PARTNERS, LLC; JIM DALY; PAVILION CONSTRUCTION

Respondents.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS

DALY PARTNERS, LLC AND JIM DALY

Charles E. Newton, WSBA No. 36635 CAIRNCROSS & HEMPELMANN, P.S.

524 Second Avenue, Suite 500 Seattle, WA 98104-2323 Telephone: (206) 587-0700 Facsimile: (206) 587-2308

Attorneys for Respondents Daly Partners,

LLC and Jim Daly

COURT OF APPEALS DIV

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

IV. ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

The appellate court reviews motions for summary judgment de novo, performing the same inquiry as the trial court. Wilkinson v. Chiwawa Communities Ass'n, 180 Wn.2d 241, 249, 327 P.2d 614 (2014). An appellate court will affirm the trial court's order granting summary judgment if there are no genuine issues of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Id.

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 13 {03121700.DOCX;1} B. The trial court properly held the Easement Agreement is enforceable and granted summary judgment dismissing the Liikanes' claims because there are no genuine issues of material fact.

The Liikanes appear to argue in their first and fifth assignments of error and corresponding supporting arguments that the trial court erred in granting the Daly Parties' cross-motion for summary judgment because there are genuine issues of material fact as to whether the Easement Agreement was breached and therefore unenforceable. The record, however, shows that no such genuine issues of material fact exist.

The purpose of summary judgment is to avoid unnecessary litigation when there is no genuine issue of any material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. "It is the trial court's function to determine whether such a genuine issue exists" and "[t]he burden of proving, by uncontroverted facts, that no genuine issue exists is upon the moving party." LePlante v. State, 85 Wn.2d 154, 158, 531 P.2d 299 (1975). "If no genuine issue of material fact exists it must then be determined whether the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." Id. (citing CR 56(c)). With respect to the Liikanes' assignment of error, "[w]hen a Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 14 (03121700.DOCX;1)

motion for summary judgment is supported by evidentiary matter, the adverse party may not rest on mere allegations in the pleadings but must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial." Id.

The touchstone of the Liikanes argument is that the Easement Agreement is not a valid, binding contract because the Daly Partners breached the Easement Agreement. This argument fails for the fundamental reason that it attempts to read terms into the Easement Agreement which do not exist. 1701 Dexter, as the successor to the grantee under the Easement Agreement, complied with all of its obligations and the limitations set forth in the Easement Agreement. As such, no breach occurred and the Easement Agreement is fully enforceable on the parties.

Inhabit Dexter is the original grantee under the Easement

Agreement. CP 128; CP 140-185; CP 186-197. Inhabit Dexter took
some initial steps to develop the Property prior to selling it to 1701

Dexter, including commissioning plans for a shoring system to
comport with the Easement Agreement (the "Original Plans").

CP 128. The Original Plans were drafted by John Byrne of Ground

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 15 {03121700.DOCX;1} Support, LLC and were drafted with <u>specific knowledge</u> of the scope of the Easement Agreement. CP 250-251.

The Liikanes are correct that the Shoring System that was actually constructed differs from the Original Plans. The Liikanes allege that these minor differences constitute a breach of the Easement Agreement. The Liikanes' argument is fundamentally flawed for one glaringly obvious reason – the Original Plans are not part of the Easement Agreement and nothing in the Easement Agreement requires that the Shoring System conform to the same specifications as the Original Plans.

Rather, as explained in detail above, the Easement Agreement contains three specific limitations on the scope of the Shoring System. Mr. Byrne – who created both the Original Plans and the Shoring System – testified that: (1) the soil nails are all placed at a minimum depth of fifteen feet below the grade of the Liikane Properties, (2) the soil nails extend only thirty-two feet onto the Liikane Properties, and (3) the soil nails are installed into a soldier pile wall in the same "general configuration" as the one shown in Exhibit D to the Easement Agreement. These are the only

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 16 {03121700.DOCX;1} requirements of the Easement Agreement and the Shoring Plan conforms with all of them.

Even more importantly, the Easement Agreement is a fully integrated contract. Specifically, Paragraph 8 provides as follows:

> 8. Entire Agreement. This Soil Nail Easement contains the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings among the parties relating to the subject matter of this Soil Nail Easement. This Soil Nail Easement shall not be modified, amended or terminated without the prior written approval of the parties hereto.

Thus, the terms of the Original Plans cannot be read into the Easement Agreement. The fact that the Shoring Plan differs from the Original Plans is immaterial and cannot form the basis for a claim that the Easement Agreement is invalid.

The Liikanes' assertions that events and facts not addressed or contemplated in the Easement Agreement can provide grounds for a contractual breach of the Easement Agreement are simply incorrect. The facts which the Liikanes allege are disputed are in fact irrelevant to this breach of contract action. None of the allegations made by the Liikanes (e.g., whether Inhabit Dexter completed its construction project on the Property, whether new Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 17

{03121700.DOCX;1}

permits were required by the City of Seattle, etc.) impact the enforceability of the Easement Agreement. None of these alleged factual disputes are contemplated in or relevant to the enforceability of the Easement Agreement. The Daly Parties and 1701 Dexter have fully complied with grantee's obligations under the Easement Agreement and the Liikanes, as grantor, may not read terms into the Easement Agreement in an effort to unwind the agreement and free themselves of its obligations so that they can negotiate a more lucrative payment. Given that there are no genuine issues of material fact regarding the grant of summary judgment dismissing the Liikanes' breach of contract claim, the Court should affirm the trial court's ruling.

C. The Liikanes' arguments based on the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment are immaterial to their claim for criminal trespass and should be dismissed.

With respect to the second and fourth assignments of error, the Liikanes appear to argue that the trial court violated their constitutional rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment by allowing 1701 Dexter to allegedly commit a criminal trespass onto

the Liikane Properties. These constitutional arguments are wholly without merit.

The protections afforded by the Fourth Amendment are wholly inapplicable to this case. The first clause of the Fourth Amendment provides that the "right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated...." U.S. Const. amend IV, §1. This clause provides protections against two types of actions, the first being "searches," and the second being "seizures." U.S. v. Jacobsen, 466 U.S. 109, 114 (1984). As explained by the Supreme Court, "[a] 'search' occurs when an expectation of privacy that society is prepared to consider reasonable is infringed. A 'seizure' of property occurs when there is some meaningful interference with an individual's possessory interests in that property." Id. (internal citations omitted).

Here, the Liikanes complain neither about a search nor a seizure. Rather, they allege that their Fourth Amendment rights were violated because 1701 Dexter has been allowed to commit a "criminal trespass on Appellants' property." Appellants' Brief at

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 19 {03121700.DOCX;1} p. 11, ln. 5-6. The Liikanes cite no authority – nor is there any – which states that a criminal trespass can form the basis for a Fourth Amendment violation.

Even if it could, there is one additional glaring flaw in the Liikanes' argument. The prohibitions of the Fourth Amendment proscribe only governmental actions. <u>Jacobsen</u>, 466 U.S. at 114. A person is afforded no Fourth Amendment protections against a search or seizure by a private individual or entity. <u>Id</u>. As there is no governmental action alleged here, the Fourth Amendment is entirely inapplicable.

The Liikanes' equal protection argument is similarly without merit. A party alleging a violation of the Equal Protection Clause "must establish that he received disparate treatment because of membership in a class of similarly situated individuals and that the disparate treatment was the result of intentional or purposeful discrimination." State v. Osman, 157 Wn.2d 474, 484, 139 P.3d 334 (2006); U.S. Const. amend XIV, §1. The Liikanes have not alleged or presented any evidence that they are a member of a suspect class

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 20 {03121700.DOCX;1} whose fundamental rights were disparately impacted as a result of state action.

To the extent the Liikanes assign error to the trial court's dismissal of their criminal trespass claim independently from their constitutional arguments, the allegation is again without merit. As the undisputed facts show, all of the work performed by 1701 Dexter to the Liikane Properties was done in compliance with the terms of the Easement Agreement. A trespass is an intrusion onto the property of another that interferes with the other's right to exclusive possession. Bosteder v. City of Renton, 155 Wn.2d 18, 50, 117 P.3d 316 (2005). "To establish intentional trespass, a plaintiff must show: (1) an invasion of property affecting an interest in exclusive possession; (2) an intentional act; (3) reasonable foreseeability that the act would disturb the plaintiff's possessory interest; and (4) actual and substantial damages." Wallace v. Lewis County, 134 Wn. App. 1, 15, 137 P.3d 101 (2006), as corrected (Aug. 15, 2006). "[T]he plaintiff who cannot show that actual and substantial damages have been suffered should be subject to dismissal of his cause upon a motion for summary judgment." Bradley v. American

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 21 {03121700.DOCX;1} Smelting and Refining Co., 104 Wn.2d 677, 692, 709 P.2d 782 (1985).

1701 Dexter readily admits it placed the soil nails into the ground below the Liikane Properties. However, despite the Liikanes' allegations of malfeasance, 1701 Dexter did so pursuant to and within the scope of the rights expressly provided by the Easement Agreement. Because the Liikane Property Owners granted and recorded an easement specifically for the placing of underground soil nails, they cannot plausibly argue that the placing of underground soil nails in accordance with that agreement violates their right to exclusive possession of the subterranean portion of the Liikane Properties.

In determining the scope of an easement created by express grant, the court looks to the original grant language to determine the permitted uses. Brown v. Voss, 105 Wn.2d 366, 371, 715 P.2d 514 (1986). "The intent of the original parties to an easement is determined from the deed as a whole." Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District v. Dickie, 149 Wn.2d 873, 880, 73 P.3d 369 (1981). "If the plain language is unambiguous, extrinsic evidence will not be

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 22 {03121700.DOCX;1} considered." <u>Id.</u> (*citing* <u>City of Seattle v. Nazarenus</u>, 60 Wn.2d 657, 665, 374 P.2d 1014 (1962)). Here, as explained at length above, the Shoring System is in compliance with every requirement of the Easement Agreement, which are expressly and unambiguously set out in the document itself. Thus, the Liikanes simply cannot show that their right to exclusive possession of the Liikane Properties was violated. On that basis alone this claim should be dismissed.

Last, other than self-serving, conclusory statements, the
Liikanes have not articulated a basis for any of their claimed
damages. As stated above, in the absence of "actual and substantial
damages," a claim for trespass must be dismissed on summary
judgment. Bradley, 104 Wn.2d at 692. The Liikanes have alleged
no facts that support finding damages, either temporary or
permanent, and the trespass claims also fail on these grounds. As
such, the trial court properly dismissed the Liikanes' criminal
trespass claims.

D. The Liikanes' argument that the trial court erred in not applying the Seventh Amendment and requiring a jury trial for this matter is similarly erroneous and should be dismissed.

The Liikanes argue that the trial court erred in not applying the Seventh Amendment of the U.S. Constitution to this matter. The Liikanes arguments are misplaced given the well-settled law that "[t]he seventh amendment to the United States Constitution does not apply through the Fourteenth Amendment to the states in civil trials." Bird v. Best Plumbing Group, LLC, 175 Wn.2d 756, 768, 287 P.3d 551 (2012); U.S. Const. amend VII. Given that this case is a civil action, the Liikanes have no Seventh Amendment right to a jury trial.

E. The Daly Parties are entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to the RAP 18.1 and 18.9 as a result of the Liikanes' filing of this frivolous appeal.

RAP 18.9(a) permits the Court to require a party to pay the fees of another party for defending a frivolous appeal. Eugster v. City of Spokane, 139 Wn. App. 21, 34, 156 P.3d 912 (2007) (citing Fay v. Nw. Airlines, Inc., 115 Wn.2d 194, 796 P.2d 412 (1990)). "An appeal is frivolous if there are no debatable issues upon which reasonable minds might differ and it is so totally devoid of merit that Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 24 (03121700.DOCX;1)

there was no reasonable possibility of reversal." <u>Eugster</u>, 139 Wn. App. at 34.

The Liikanes' appeal is utterly devoid of merit. The Liikanes' appellate arguments are either lack any factual basis and were plainly dismissed by the trial court or they consist of constitutional arguments that are wholly irrelevant and inapplicable to this matter. The Daly Parties were unreasonably forced to expend more time and financial expense to defend these frivolous claims and therefore request the Court award attorneys' fees to the Daly Parties pursuant to RAP 18.1. Given that reasonable minds could not differ in upholding the dismissal of the Liikanes' claims, the Court should sanction the Liikanes and award the Daly Parties the cost of their attorneys' fees.

V. CONCLUSION

The trial court properly determined that 1701 Dexter was within its rights to install the Shoring System such that no breach of the Easement Agreement occurred. The trial court also properly held that the Easement Agreement is valid and enforceable against the Liikane Property Owners such that they are not excused from

Brief of Respondents Court of Appeals Case No. 73641-8-I - 25 {03121700.DOCX;1} their obligations under the agreement. Furthermore, the Liikanes' constitutional arguments are without merit and inapplicable to this matter. The Liikanes were not subject to a search or seizure by the government, nor were they disparately treated because of membership in a class – thus, both the Liikanes' Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment claims are improper. Lastly, the Liikanes' argument that they are entitled to a jury trial in this civil action is also contrary to law and the requirements of the Seventh Amendment. Therefore, the Daly Parties respectfully request that this Court affirm the trial court's orders and award attorneys' fees to the Daly Parties.